
 

 

Lewisville Town Council 
Regular Meeting Agenda  
June 13, 2024 – 6:00 PM 

Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Council Chambers 
6510 Shallowford Road 

 
1. Call to Order: 

A. Roll Call 
B. Invocation – Council Member Jane Welch 
C. Pledge of Allegiance – Mayor Mike Horn 
D. Adoption of Agenda 

 
2. Consent Agenda 

A. Resolution 2024-025– Financial statements for the ten months ended April 30, 2024 (Attachment #1) 
B. Approval of Budget Workshop Minutes – April 18, 2024 (Attachment #2) 
C. Approval of Budget Workshop Minutes – April 29, 2024 (Attachment #3) 
D. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – May 2, 2024 (Attachment #4) 
E. Approval of Closed Session Minutes – May 2, 2024  
F. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – May 9, 2024 (Attachment #5) 
G. Approval of Closed Session Minutes – May 9, 2024  
H. Approval of Budget Workshop Minutes – May 13, 2024 (Attachment #6) 
I. Ordinance 2024-011 – Amending Budget Ordinance 2023-001 – Jack Warren Park Improvements - 

$58,736 (Ordinance Number Correction – Previously adopted as Ordinance 2024-008) 
J. Revised 2024 Meeting Schedule (Attachment #7) 

 
3. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations 

A. Presentations 
i. Sheriff’s Office monthly report 

ii. Introduction of Officer 
 
4. Public Forum 

A. Residents should register with the Town Clerk and limit their comments to three (3) minutes.  
B. Written comments are also available. 

 
5. Public Hearing 

A. Rezoning – L-109 – 2065 Glenn Ferry Court  
i. Staff presentation 
ii. Public Hearing 
iii. Council discussion 
iv. Council consideration – Ordinance 2024-012– Change zoning from Forsyth County RS-30 to Town 

of Lewisville RS-30 – 2065 Glenn Ferry Court (Attachment #8) 
B. Annexation – 2065 Glenn Ferry Court 

i. Staff presentation 
ii. Public Hearing 
iii. Council discussion 
iv. Council consideration – Ordinance 2024-013 – Extend the Town of Lewisville corporate limits to 

include 2065 Glenn Ferry Court (Attachment #9) 
 
 

 



 

 

6. New Business  
A. Ordinance 2024-001 – 2024-2025 Budget  (Attachment #10) 
B. Ordinance 2024-014 – Amending the Sidewalks, Bike Paths and Greenways Capital Reserve Fund 

(Attachment #11) 
C. Ordinance 2024-015 – Amending the Municipal Buildings and Land Capital Reserve Fund (Attachment #12) 
D. Ordinance 2024-016 – Amending the Public Works Facility Capital Reserve Fund (Attachment #13) 
E. Ordinance 2024-017– Amending the Parks and Recreation Capital Reserve Fund (Attachment #14) 
F. Ordinance 2024-018 – Order to collect 2024 taxes (Attachment #15) 
G. Ordinance 2024-019 – Order to collect 2023 and prior years’ taxes (Attachment #16) 
H. Resolution 2024-026 – Awarding janitorial service contract for Jack Warren Pak, Shallowford Square, 

Town Hall Annex and G Galloway Reynolds Community Center - $50,496 (Attachment #17) 
I. Resolution 2024-027 – Awarding janitorial service contract for Town Hall - $27,384 (Attachment #18) 
J. Resolution 2024-028 – Awarding horticultural maintenance contract - $95,616 (Attachment #19) 
K. Resolution 2024-029 – Awarding grounds maintenance services contract (Attachment #20) 
L. Resolution 2024-030 – Awarding snow and ice removal contract (Attachment #21) 
M. Ordinance 2024-020 – Amend Grant Project Ordinance for the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021: 

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (Attachment #22) 
N. Appointment 2024-003 – Triad Municipal Alcoholic Beverage Control System Board (Attachment #23) 
O. Ordinance 2024-021 – Street maintenance acceptance of a portion Plemmons Road (Attachment #24) 

 
7. Administrative Reports 

A. Upcoming events and closings  
i. Street Party & Food Truck Festival – The Band of Oz – June 22, 6-9 PM 

ii. Independence Day Tribute Concert – Jim Quick & Coastline – June 29, 7-9 PM 
iii. Town offices closed – July 4 

B. Clerk’s Report  
i. CPR Class – August 10, 8 AM-12 PM, MAWCC 

 
8. For the Good of the Order 

A. Public Comments 
i. Residents should limit their comments to three (3) minutes. 

ii. Written comment forms are also available.  
B. Council Comments 
 

9. Adjournment 
 

10. Reception 



DRAFT

Attachment #1



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



Lewisville Town Council 
Budget and Action Meeting 

April 18, 2024 – 6:00 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Council Chambers 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:00 PM. In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro

Tem Melissa Hunt and Council Members Ivan Huffman, Monte Long and Jane Welch. Also attending
were Interim Town Manager Stacy Tolbert, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Town Clerk Dora Moore,
and Public Works Director Jon Hanna. Council Members Julie Puckett and Ken Sadler were absent.

B. Council Member Huffman moved to approve the agenda. The motion was seconded by Council
Member Long and approved unanimously.

2. Budget Review
A. Mayor Horn stated the Town has been fortunate to maintain the current tax rate for twenty years.

Two years ago, the Town did not fully fund reserves. Reserves are critical because they allow the
Town to apply for and fund projects. Again this year, reserves will not be funded and Mayor Horn
stated this should cause concern.

Forsyth County Commissioner Dan Besse briefly entered the chambers to introduce himself to Council. 

B. A tax increase from 17.7 cents/$100 valuation to 21.7 cents/$100 valuation is proposed.
C. Services remain the same and funding for existing projects will move forward.
D. The North Carolina League of Municipalities’ (NCLM) projections for sales and use tax revenues was

followed. They are projecting a 2.2% increase in revenues.
E. The alcoholic beverages tax revenue is projected to decrease 13.9% in FY 2023-2024 and rebound

by 3.5% in FY 2024-2025.
F. As residents continue to ‘cut the cord,’ telecommunications and video programming sales tax

revenues continue to decline.
G. Powell Bill funds are appropriated by the NC General Assembly.
H. Revenue investments have increased and are projected to increase as well. This helps with both

the budget and capital reserve funds.
I. Revenues at the Mary Alice Warren Community Center (MAWCC) are projected to remain steady

at $70,000.
J. Appropriated fund balance includes: 1) transfer to Willow Run MSD Special Revenue Fund; 2)

carryover of Unified Development Ordinance rewrite; and, 3) carryover of storm water mapping
project.

K. Property tax revenue is half of the Town’s revenue source.

Attachment #2



L. Mrs. Tolbert explained the proposed tax increase:

M. Council expressed concern that they discussed proposed projects at the recent retreat and they
are unable to fund any new projects.

N. Council consensus was given to obtain quotes for a pay study by a third-party consultant.
O. Council consensus was given for the interim manager to award up to 3% merit bonuses to staff

members, as warranted. Merit is not to be added to salaries.
P. Council consensus was given for a 3.1% COLA for staff and it will be added to the top of the pay

grade.
Q. The five-year resident survey will be done digitally in 2024.
R. Staff will obtain cost estimates buyout of the current touch-screen television as well as purchase

of a new one.
S. Mayor Pro Tem Hunt requested the Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office be requested if they would assist

with repairs to the Town Hall Annex.

3. Adjournment – Council Member Welch moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:08 PM. The motion as
seconded by Council Member Long and approved unanimously.

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor 

_______________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



Lewisville Town Council 
Budget and Action Meeting 

April 29, 2024 – 6:00 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Council Chambers 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:00 PM. In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro

Tem Melissa Hunt and Council Members Ivan Huffman, Monte Long, Julie Puckett, Ken Sadler and
Jane Welch. Also attending were Interim Town Manager Stacy Tolbert, Finance Director Pam
Orrell, Town Clerk Dora Moore, and Public Works Director Jon Hanna.

B. Council Member Puckett moved to approve the agenda. The motion was seconded by Council
Member Huffman and approved unanimously.

2. Budget Review
A. Mrs. Tolbert requested additional clarification about follow up items from the April 18 meeting:

i. Citizen survey – Council consensus was to conduct the citizen survey digitally only this year,
time the survey with the newsletter so it can be promoted, possibly do a Lewisville Connect
call, and budget $3,000.

ii. Educational television – Mrs. Tolbert reported the current lease for the educational television is
$4,400/year and it is time to sign a 3-year renewal lease. A new television can be purchased for
$7,500. Council consensus was to purchase a new television and to look at an extended
warranty.

B. After some discussion about training and travel, Council requested staff to come back with savings
in training and travel budgets.

C. Council Member Welch inquired what the impact would be if taxes were only increased two cents
versus four cents. Mrs. Orrell stated the Council would be violating their policy of not funding
operations from general fund. Council Member Welch then expressed concern about the
community policing increase.

D. Mrs. Tolbert reminded Council the proposed four cent tax increase does not fully cover the
increases of solid waste, recycling and community policing.

E. The beautification budget was increased for additional plantings at the Mary Alice Warren
Community Center (MAWCC) dinosaurs and other areas, Jack Warren Park (JWP) gardens, the
gateway project, and future JWP improvements.

F. The Town’s current speed trailer no longer stores data and is unable to be updated due to its age.
Staff is proposing to purchase a new speed trailer.

G. Council inquired if the Town can add an additional fine to those who speed in Lewisville.
H. Traffic enforcement hustles are done at a minimum of four hours and includes running radar,

writing tickets and bringing visibility in areas as needed.
I. Mayor Pro Tem Hunt inquired what it would look like to bring mowing in house. Mrs. Tolbert and

Mr. Hanna noted the Town does not have the staff capacity nor equipment, which would be an
estimated initial investment of $250,000 for equipment only.

Break 7:45 PM – 7:55 PM. 

Attachment #3



J. Mr. Hanna shared the first year requirements of the five-year stormwater permit. He noted
Clemmons, Kernersville and Winston-Salem have stormwater impact fees. Due to growth and
standards, Mrs. Tolbert stated it would be beneficial to have a dedicated staff person for
stormwater only.

k. Mayor Horn noted there is nothing in the budget for sustainability citing the Town’s resolution goals
by 2030.

l. Council Member Sadler requested telephone options for the Galloway building be explored.
m.  Mrs. Tolbert noted that at the retreat, Council discussed the Public Art Committee’s budget requests.

At that time, Council directed the budget to include hanging systems for the gallery, a mural over
the coffee bar and miscellaneous expenses such as art shows.  Mayor Horn stated that Barbara
Campbell, Public Art Committee chair, has expressed concern with the Town not matching the
$5,000 Shallowford Foundation grant for public art in Shallowford Square. Council discussed their
desire to assist the committee in locating funding as well as supporting the Shallowford Foundation,
since they have contributed diligently to MAWCC programming. Council consensus was to establish
a grant line item in the budget of $10,000, whereby this year those funds will be given to the Public
Art Committee. Council also desires to find ways to assist the committee in soliciting future
benefactors.

n. No funding is proposed for any of the Town’s capital reserve funds. Concern was expressed about
not funding the reserves which permits the Town to pursue project and grant opportunities when
they become available.

o. ARPA funding is not budgeted because it cannot be used to balance the budget. The Town’s
remaining ARPA funds must be spent by December 31, 2024. Mrs. Orrell stated that by reimbursing
salaries there should be no problem expending the funds by the deadline.

p. There are no proposed fee schedule changes.



q. Council discussed having another budget work session since two Council members were unable to
attend the first session. The next budget work session is scheduled to be held following the May 2
agenda briefing.

3. Adjournment – Council Member Huffman moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:21 PM. The motion as
seconded by Council Member Puckett and approved unanimously.

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor 

_______________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



Lewisville Town Council 
Briefing and Action Meeting Minutes 

May 2, 2024 – 6:00 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 2nd Floor Conference Room 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:00 PM.  In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro

Tem Melissa Hunt, and Council Members Ivan Huffman, Monte Long, Julia Puckett, Ken Sadler
and Jane Welch.  Also attending were Interim Town Manager/Planning Director Stacy Tolbert,
Town Clerk Dora Moore, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Public Works Director Jon Hanna, and Town
Attorney Elliot Fus.

B. Adoption of Agenda – Council Member Welch moved to approve the agenda.  The motion was
seconded by Council Member Puckett and approved unanimously.

2. Items Requiring Council Direction
A. Plemmons Road maintenance – The North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) has

inquired if the Town would be interested in assuming maintenance of 265 feet of Plemmons Road
(gravel) that is outside the Town’s corporate limits. The Town currently maintains portions of
Plemmons Road on both sides of this section. Staff has inquired if the unincorporated portion
would be eligible for Powell Bill funding. One dwelling and one vacant lot is accessed from this
portion of Plemmons Road. At this time, the Town does not maintain any other roads outside the
corporate limits. Council consensus was to accept maintenance with or without Powell Bill
funding.

B. Great Wagon Road betterments
i. Since the Great Wagon Road will become a Town-maintained road a year after project

completion, the Town can install pedestal lighting. Council consensus was given to install
straight poles whereby banners can be hung along the Great Wagon Road at a cost of
$2,447.84/pole plus $21.85/pole/month for LED lights.

ii. The retaining wall at Lewisville First Baptist Church will be impacted by the project. NCDOT
will replace the portion of the retaining wall within the project area and will attempt to match
the block style; however, they do not think the color will match. To replace all of the block
would be a cost to the Town of approximately $55,000-$65,000. Mrs. Tolbert has discussed
this with the church’s pastor and the church would like the block to match but understand if
the Town is unable to do so. Council consensus was to not replace all the block and for staff
to evaluate potential options to rectify the inconsistency.

iii. Mrs. Tolbert noted the Town is responsible for the water and sewer lines in the Great Wagon
Road. It is anticipated the Town will see a shortfall of approximately $2 million. Mrs. Tolbert
stressed this is only an estimate and the Town will know more at bid.

C. Forsyth 250 Committee representative – Forsyth County Historic Resources Commission has
requested a Town representative to serve on the Forsyth 250 committee. This committee is an
official America 250 NC committee commemorating 250 years since the signing of the Declaration
of Independence. If the Lewisville Historical Society has representation on the committee, a Town
staff member will serve as a Town’s representative.

D. Traffic calming discussion – Council Member Long, via email, shared videos with Council regarding
an accident and traffic issues in Shallowford Reserve. The Town’s current traffic mitigation policy
was discussed. Council consensus was to evaluate the cost of speed humps with emergency
breaks, develop proposed revisions to the policy, and determine if the Town can set additional
speeding fines.

Attachment #4



3. Items Requiring Action at Briefing – None

4. Administrative Reports
A. Interim Town Manager

i. Willow Run Municipal Service District (WRMSD) update – Town staff hosted an informational
meeting related to Marblehead Dam improvements and the proposed WRMSD tax increase
was held at the Mary Alice Warren Community Center (MAWCC) on May 1. The meeting was
publicized by flyer, the MSD Board, the neighborhood association and Lewisville Connect.
The goal of the meeting was to inform the WRMSD community about the history, charter,
MSD duties, funding, and the procurement and bid process. Approximately, fifty-six
residents attended who were receptive of the needed repairs. The resident’s main question
was why the Town was not contributing whereby staff shared the Town would provide an
interest-free loan to WRMSD, which is a revenue loss to the Town. Mrs. Tolbert noted the
WRMSD Board concurs with the Town’s proposal.

ii. PARTF/Jack Warren Park Improvements – Five bids were received at the April 18 bid opening
for the PARTF/Jack Warren Park improvements. To offset costs, the Town had self-perform
options for landscaping and electrical. With these two items being self-performed, low bid
was approximately $425,000. There is $404,000 in the project fund and almost $60,000 in
the Parks & Recreation reserve fund. Council consensus was to add this item to the May 9
agenda.

B. Clerk
i. Youth Art Show – May 8, 4:30-7:00 PM, MAWCC

ii. Budget Work Session – May 13, 6 PM, Town Hall
iii. Board & Committee Collaboration Session – May 16, 5:30-6:30 PM, Town Hall
iv. Volunteer Appreciation Event – May 16, 6:30 PM, Town Hall
v. Jurassic Park – May 17

vi. Military Appreciation Concert – May  27, 6-8 PM
vii. Camel City Yacht Club – June 8, 7-9 PM

viii. Blood Drive – June 12, MAWCC

5. Tentative Agenda Items for Regular Meeting on May 9, 2024
A. Consent Agenda

i. Resolution 2024-020– Financial statements for the nine months ended March 31, 2024
ii. Approval of Closed Session Minutes – April 3, 2024
iii. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – April 4, 2024
iv. Approval of Closed Session Minutes – April 4, 2024
v. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – April 11, 2024
vi. Approval of Closed Session Minutes – April 15, 2024

B. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations
i. Presentations

a. Sheriff’s Office monthly report
C. Public Hearing

i. 2024-2025 Budget
D. New Business

i. Resolution 2024-021 – 2023-2024 Audit services contract with Gibson & Company, PA

A break was taken 7:37 PM – 7:43 PM. 



6. Closed Session – NCGS 143-318.11(a)(5) and NCGS 143-318.11(a)(6)
A. Council Member Huffman moved to enter into closed session for property acquisition pursuant

to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(5) and personnel pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(6) at 7:43 PM. The
motion was seconded by Council Member Long and approved unanimously.

B. Staff was excused from the personnel portion of the closed session at 8:19 PM.
C. Council returned from closed session at 8:44 PM.

7. For the Good of the Order
A. Clarification was given regarding COLA and merit increases for staff. It was noted that merit will

be given as a bonus this year and not added to salary.

8. Adjournment – Council Member Huffman moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:00 PM.  The motion
was seconded by Council Member Welch and approved unanimously.

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor  

____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



Lewisville Town Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 9, 2024 – 6:00 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall Council Chambers 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:00 PM.  In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro

Tem Melissa Hunt, and Council Members Ivan Huffman, Monte Long, Julie Puckett, Ken sadlerand
Jane Welch.  Also attending were Interim Town Manager Stacy Tolbert, Town Clerk Dora Moore,
Finance Director Pam Orrell, Public Works Director Jon Hanna, and Town Attorney Elliot Fus.

B. Invocation – Council Member Ken Sadler
C. Pledge of Allegiance – Council Member Jane Welch
D. Adoption of Agenda – Council Member Welch moved to approve the agenda. The motion was

seconded by Council Member Puckett and approved unanimously.

2. Consent Agenda
A. Resolution 2024-020– Financial statements for the nine months ended March 31, 2024
B. Approval of Closed Session Minutes – April 3, 2024
C. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – April 4, 2024
D. Approval of Closed Session Minutes – April 4, 2024
E. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – April 11, 2024
F. Approval of Closed Session Minutes – April 15, 2024

Council Member Sadler moved to approve the consent agenda items.  The motion was seconded by 
Mayor Pro Tem Hunt and approved unanimously.  (Resolution 2024-020 is herein incorporated by reference into 

the minutes.) 

3. Presentations, Introductions and/or Proclamations – None

4. Public Forum
A. Susan Morris, 237 North Street, shared Lewisville is home to the newest district of the Colored

Pencil Society of America Chapter 125. She noted open drawing sessions are held at the Mary
Alice Warren Community Center (MAWCC) on Mondays, 10 AM-12 PM and the second Saturday.
Mayor Horn thanked Mrs. Morris for judging the recent Youth Art Show.

5. Old Business – None

6. Public Hearing
A. 2024-2025 Budget

i. Staff presentation – Mrs. Tolbert shared the proposed tax rate for the 2024-2025 budget year
is $0.217. The tax increase is due to increased solid waste, recycling and community policing
costs. No allocations have been made to the capital reserve funds. The budget also includes a
contribution to the Willow Run Municipal Service District (WRMSD) fund for repairs to Lake
Marblehead Dam.

ii. Public hearing
a. Peter Schwartz, 1852 Barnstable Road, inquired if the proposed five cents tax increase for

WRMSD would revert back to the current tax after eight years. Mrs. Tolbert explained this

Attachment #5



is a proposed, temporary, interest-free tax as permitted by the WRMSD charter for 
repairs. 

iii. Council discussion – Mayor Horn encouraged residents to call him if they have questions
regarding the budget.

7. New Business
A. Town Manager appointment and contract approval – Mayor Horn stated that Stacy Tolbert has

taken on additional responsibilities each time when serving as interim town manager and has
done a great job.  Mayor Horn moved to appoint Stacy Tolbert as Town Manager and to enter into
a contract effective May 1, 2024 and expiring July 30, 2025. The motion was seconded by Council
Member Sadler.  Council members echoed Mayor Horn’s sentiments. The motion was approved
unanimously.

B. Resolution 2024-022 – Appointing Deputy Finance Officer – Council Member Long moved to
approve Resolution 2024-022 appointing Town Manager Stacy Tolbert as Deputy Finance Officer.
The motion was seconded by Council Member Puckett and approved unanimously. (Resolution 2024-

022 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

Mrs. Tolbert was administered the oath of office by Town Clerk Dora Moore. Mrs. Tolbert was 
assisted by her husband and sons, Justin, Camden and Colten Tolbert. 

Mrs. Tolbert expressed gratitude and excitement to serve and give back to the Town of Lewisville, 
the residents and the community. 

C. Resolution 2024-021 – 2023-2024 Audit services contract with Gibson & Company, PA – Council
Member Sadler moved to approve Resolution 2024-021. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro
Tem Hunt and approved unanimously. (Resolution 2024-021 is herein incorporated by reference into the 

minutes.)

D. Ordinance 2024-008 – Amend the Jack Warren Park Improvements Capital Project Ordinance -
$151,404 – Council Member Sadler moved to approve Ordinance 2024-008. The motion was
seconded by Council Member Puckett and approved unanimously. (Ordinance 2024-008 is herein 

incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

E. Ordinance 2024-009 – Amend Ordinance 2023-001 to transfer $58,736 from the Parks &
Recreation Capital Reserve Fund to the JWP Improvements Capital Projects Fund – Mayor Pro
Tem Hunt moved to approve Ordinance 2024-009. The motion was seconded by Council Member
Huffman and approved unanimously. (Ordinance 2024-009 is herein incorporated by reference into the 

minutes.)

F. Ordinance 2024-010 – Amending Ordinance 2023-001 to transfer $132,188 from the General
Fund to the JWP Improvements Capital Projects Fund – Council Member Welch moved to approve
Ordinance 2024-010. The motion was seconded by Council Member Long and approved
unanimously. (Ordinance 2024-010 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

G. Resolution 2024-023 – Approving contract with Garanco, Inc. – $420,176.14 – Council Member
Huffman moved to approve Resolution 2024-023. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Hunt and approved unanimously. (Resolution 2024-023 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

H. Resolution 2024-024 – Approving contract with Johnson's Modern Electric, Inc. – $57,910 –
Council Member Puckett moved to approve Resolution 2024-024. The motion was seconded by
Council Member Long and approved unanimously. (Resolution 2024-024 is herein incorporated by 

reference into the minutes.)



8. Administrative Reports
A. Upcoming events and closings

i. Jurassic Park – May 17
ii. Memorial Day – May 27 – Town Offices Closed

iii. Military Appreciation Concert – The Embers – May  27, 6-8 PM
iv. Camel City Yacht Club – June 8, 7-9 PM
v. Blood Drive – June 12, MAWCC

B. Clerk’s Report
i. Budget Calendar

- Workshops – May 13, 6 PM
- Budget ordinance final review – June 6, 6 PM
- Budget approval – June 13, 6 PM

ii. Board & Committee Collaboration/Orientation Session – May 16, 5:30-6:30 PM, Town Hall
iii. Volunteer Appreciation Event – May 16, 6:30 PM, Town Hall

9. For the Good of the Order
A. Public comments – None
B. Council comments

i. Council Member Sadler commended Town staff with how they managed during the interim
period of appointing a new Town Manager.

ii. Council Member Sadler stated resident Rusty LaRue was the commencement speaker at the
Forsyth Tech graduation. Mr. LaRue did a great job encouraging the graduates who ranged
in age from 15 to 74.

A reception was held 6:44 PM-7:03 PM. 

10. Closed Session – NCGS 143-318.11(a)(5)
A. Mayor Horn moved to enter into closed session for property acquisition pursuant to NCGS 143-

318.11(a)(5) at 7:06 PM. The motion was seconded by Council Member Huffman and approved
unanimously.

B. Council returned from closed session at 7:39 PM.

Council Member Puckett moved to retain the services of AuFrance Valuations, LLC for an appraisal of a 
potential property acquisition. The motion was seconded by Council Member Sadler and approved 
unanimously. 

Mayor Horn extended thanks to the Public Art Advisory Committee for the recent Youth Art Show at 
MAWCC. 

11. Adjournment – Council Member Long moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:41 PM. The motion was
seconded by Council Member Huffman and approved unanimously.

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



Lewisville Town Council 
Budget and Action Meeting 

May 13, 2024 – 6:00 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Council Chambers 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:00 PM. In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro

Tem Melissa Hunt and Council Members Ivan Huffman, Monte Long, Ken Sadler and Jane Welch.
Also attending were Interim Manager Stacy Tolbert, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Town Clerk Dora
Moore, and Public Works Director Jon Hanna. Council Member Julie Puckett was absent.

2. Budget Review
A. Mrs. Tolbert and Mrs. Orrell shared the proposed budget adjustments as requested by Council.

(Handout is included with the minutes.)

B. Mayor Pro Tem Hunt inquired if a budget amendment could be done during the year if Council
decides to add something back into the budget. Mrs. Orrell confirmed this could be done.

C. Mrs. Orrell noted that the general fund is not used for operations. The general fund needs to grow
so funding is available for emergencies, project increases, and project opportunities.

D. A great deal of discussion was held regarding the Town’s community policing program. It was noted
that community policing is a community-oriented policing that places dedicated officers in the
community and the residents become familiar with the officers.

E. Mrs. Orrell shared and provided responses to questions submitted by Mayor Pro Tem Hunt.
(Handout is included with the minutes.)

F. Mrs. Orrell also shared and provided responses to questions submitted by Council Member Welch.
(Handout is included with the minutes.)

Council Member Sadler left at 6:59 PM. 

G. Council discussed options related to tax increases. It was agreed t this would be a Council Retreat
topic.

H. Mayor Horn stated the budget is a reflection of what is important to the Town. Surveys have
consistently shown sidewalks, recreation, and a dog park as being important; however, the budget
does not have any allocations for these.

I. Council Member Welch inquired if the survey includes a question about increasing tax rate for
services. If not, she requested it be included on the next one.

3. Adjournment – Council Member Huffman moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:36 PM. The motion as
seconded by Council Member Long and approved unanimously.

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor 

_______________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #6



TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

2024 MEETING SCHEDULE 

TIME PLACE DAY JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 

Beautification Committee 06:00pm TH MON N/A 19 18 15 20 17 N/A N/A 16 21 N/A N/A 

Parks and Recreation Board 06:00pm TH MON 8 12 11 8 13 10 8 12 9 14 N/A 9 

Planning Board Meeting  (Room 110) 06:00pm TH WED 10 14 13 10 8 12 10 14 11 9 13 11 

Public Art Advisory Committee 06:00pm TH MON N/A 5 4 1 6 3 1 5 N/A 7 4 2 

Public Safety Committee 06:00pm TH TUE 2 6 5 2 7 4 2 N/A 3 1 5 3 

Environmental Committee 06:00pm TH TUE 9 13 12 9 14 11 9 13 10 8 12 10 

Special Projects Review Comm 06:00pm TH THU 4 1 7 4 2 6 N/A 1 5 3 7 5 

T C Briefing & Action Meeting 06:00pm TH THU 4 1 7 4 2 6 3 1 5 3 7 5 

Town Council Meeting (Room 110) 06:00pm TH THU 11 8 14 11 9 13 11 8 12 10 14 12 

Willow Run Mun. Svc. District Board 06:00pm TH TUE 16 N/A 19 N/A 21 N/A N/A 20 N/A 15 N/A N/A 

Zoning Bd. of Adjustment (Room 110) 06:00pm TH TUE 23 27 26 23 28 25 23 27 24 22 26 N/A 

Council Retreat MAWCC  February 16 - 5:30 PM; February 17 - 8:30 AM 

Budget Work Sessions April 18, 6 PM; April 29, 6 PM; May 2, 6 PM  NOTE: Budget work sessions are only held if needed. 

All meetings are held in conference room 201 unless otherwise noted.   Room 110 is the Council Chambers. 

Additional meetings and changes in the meeting schedule will be advertised on Channel 6 and the Town’s website. 

Parks & Recreation Board and Zoning Board of Adjustment  - Only meets as needed.     

Planning Board Meeting - If no public hearing is scheduled, Planning Board meets in Town Hall conference room 201. 

DISABLED PERSONS REQUIRING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS MAY CONTACT TOWN HALL AT LEAST 72 HOURS 

 IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING TO REQUEST SPECIAL ASSISTANCE (336-945-5558). 

Location Legend: MAWCC—Mary Alice Warren Community Center; TH - Town Hall 

Adopted 12-14-2023 
Revised 03-14-2024 
Revised 06-13-2024 

DRAFT

Attachment #7



ORDINANCE 2024-012 OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 
AMENDING THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE’S ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE UNIFIED 

DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE AND OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

2065 GLENN FERRY COURT (L-109) 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL as follows: 

Section 1.  The Town of Lewisville Zoning Ordinance (Section B 6-2) of the Lewisville Unified 
Development Ordinances and the official zoning maps of the Town of Lewisville and 
Forsyth County, North Carolina are hereby amended by changing from RS-30 Forsyth 
County jurisdiction to RS-30 Lewisville jurisdiction for the following described 
property as:   

PIN 5887-32-3982 – 2065 Glenn Ferry Court, Pfafftown, NC 27040 

OFFICIAL METES AND BOUNDS FOLLOW: 
LYING AND BEING in Vienna Township, Forsyth County, North Carolina, and BEGINNING at stone, the 

southeast corner of the property of Seymour T. Solomon, now or formerly (Book 1000, Page 1, Forsyth 

County Registry); thence with the eastern property line of said Solomon, now or formerly, the following 

Five (5) courses and distances: (1) North 10° 19’ 25” East 270.66 feet to an existing iron pipe; (2) North 

06° 27’ 02” West 77.89 feet to an existing iron pipe; (3) North 29° 34’ 08” East 66.84 feet to an existing 

pipe; (4) North 10° o7’ 15” East 91.77 feet to an existing iron pipe and (5) North 10° 10’ 33” East 134.94 

feet to an existing iron pipe located in the southern property line of Alice S. Phillips, now or formerly (81 

E 887/ 1-1-83, Forsyth County); thence with the southern property line or said Phillips, nor or formerly; 

South 87° 58’ 53” East 666.75 feet to an existing iron pipe, the northwest corner of the property of James 

E Minick, now or formerly (Book 1333, Page 936, Forsyth County Registry); thence from said iron South 

01° 35’ 42” West 460.25 feet to an existing iron pipe, the northeast corner of the property of Jay R. Harmel, 

now or formerly (Book 1667, Page 1028, Forsyth County Registry); thence with the northern property line 

of said Harmel, nor or formerly, South 84° o4’ 19” West 156.07 feet to an existing iron pipe; thence North 

84° 06’ 05” West, crossing a 10’ gravel drive, 109.22 feet to an existing iron pipe, the northeast corner of 

the property of Wallace G. Getchell, nor or formerly (Book 1627 Page 902, Forsyth County Registry); 

thence with the northern property line of said Gretchell, nor or formerly, North 71° 02’ 15” West 202.77 

feet to an existing iron pipe, the northwest corner of said Getchell property; thence with the western 

property line of said Getchell, now or formerly, South 19° 30’ 04” West 215.04 feet to an existing iron 

pipe, the southwest corner of the aforementioned Getchell property; thence with the northern property 

line of Clifton E. Darnell, Sr., now or formerly (Book 1654, Page 1519, Forsyth County Registry), North 89° 

55’ 38” West 238.80 feet to a stone, the point and place of BEGINNING and containing 8.398 acres, more 

Attachment #8



or less.  Being Tax Lot 24M, a portion of Tax Lot 24N and a portion of Tax Lot 118 of Tax Block 4617, Forsyth 

County Tax Records.  The foregoing description was taken from a plat of survey prepared by Larry L. 

Callahan Surveying Co., Inc.; dated 6/14/93 and entitled “Map For Cynthia R. Bennett”. TOGETHER WITH 

AND SUBJECT TO a 30’ Access Easement (Book 1021, Page 577, Forsyth County Registry) and a 25’ Access 

Easement (Book 1410, Page 1001, Forsyth County Registry) to Glenn Ferry Road (S.R. 1441). 

Section 2.   This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its date of adoption. 

Adopted and effective this the 13th day of June 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council with a vote 

of ______. 

___________________________ 

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor 

____________________________ 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



GENERAL USE DISTRICT REZONING STAFF REPORT 
2065 Glenn Ferry Court 
 
DOCKET: L-109 
STAFF:  Adam Barr, Planner 
Petitioner: Brady Allen 
Ownership: Brady Allen 
 
REQUEST: 
From: RS-30 (Residential Single Family, minimum lot size of 30,000 sq. ft.) Forsyth County 

Zoning 
To: RS-30 (Residential Single Family, minimum lot size of 30,000 sq. ft.) Lewisville Zoning 
PIN(s):  5887-32-3982 
Acreage:  1.67 ac  

 
LOCATION: 
Street(s): Glenn Ferry Ct 
Jurisdiction: Town of Lewisville (pending annexation) 
 
PROPERTY SITE/IMMEDIATE AREA: 
Existing Structures on Site: The site is currently occupied by a single family home.  
  
Adjacent uses:    
* North – Single family residences, zoned RS-30 
* East - Single family residences, zoned RS-30 
* South - Single family residences, zoned RS-30 
* West - Single family residences, zoned RS-30 
 
GENERAL AREA: 
Character/Maintenance: The area is comprised entirely of single-family residence and lots.   
 
PHYSICAL FEATURES: 
Topography: The site slopes from north to south towards Glenn Ferry Ct.   
Vegetation/habitat: The property is residential and wooded.   
Watershed: The property is currently within the Yadkin River WS IV watershed.  
 
WATER AND SEWER FACILITIES: 
The site is served by well and septic. 
 
TRANSPORTATION:    
Direct Access to Site:   Glenn Ferry Ct 
Street Classification(s):   Glenn Ferry Ct – Private street 
   
 
CONFORMITY TO ORDINANCE/PLANS: 
Lewisville Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan- The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map identifies the 
areas in the town that is closest to the property as Neighborhood Residential. Neighborhood Residential 
accounts for many of the suburban-style, lower-density residential areas that have been built during the 
past 20 years. While most of the existing neighborhoods have a uniform housing type, future 



Neighborhood Residential areas should promote a mixture of housing sizes and prices as well as efficient 
neighborhood design, where appropriate. Neighborhood Residential areas of the future could include 
single-family homes and townhomes in a clustered design. 
 
Legacy Development Guide - Legacy recognizes this area as being in GMA-5 Rural Area. GMA-5 Rural 
Area is located at the fringes of Forsyth County and is beyond the area that can be provided with public 
sewer and other services in a cost-effective manner. This area is intended to remain very low density 
residential and agricultural in character.  
 
ANALYSIS: 
As described in NC § 160D-202(g): When a city annexes, or a new city is incorporated in, or a 
city extends its jurisdiction to include, an area that is currently being regulated by the county, the 
county development regulations and powers of enforcement shall remain in effect until (i) the city 
has adopted such development regulations or (ii) a period of 60 days has elapsed following the 
annexation, extension, or incorporation, whichever is sooner. Prior to the transfer of jurisdiction, 
the city may hold hearings and take any other measures consistent with G.S. 160D-204 that may 
be required in order to adopt and apply its development regulations for the area at the same time it 
assumes jurisdiction. 
 
The zoning district classifications contained in the Zoning Ordinances of Forsyth County and the Town of 
Lewisville are very similar and the permitted uses and development standards are in most cases 
equivalent, if not identical. The purpose of this zoning map amendment is to continue a similar type of 
zoning within the Town of Lewisville as previously applied under Forsyth County jurisdiction. 
 
This request is a general use rezoning for the purposes of accepting a Lewisville zoning district due to 
annexation. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The proposal is consistent with both the Lewisville Comprehensive Plan and Forsyth County Legacy Plan. 
Given these findings and other supporting information found in this report, staff recommends the 
rezoning to the Planning Board. 

 



RS30AG
RS30

AG
AG

RS30

RS30

VIENNA-DOZIER

TURKEY

BE
NS

ON

GL
EN

N 
FE

RR
Y

ST
AN

DIN
G O

AK

GLENN FERRY

This map and anaysis are provided "As Is" without warranty of any kind, either express or implied.  The information containted in this map is for 
informational purposes only and was not prepared for, and is not suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  Use of these materials 
constitutes acceptance of this disclaimer of liability.

Created by:  Stacy Tolbert

L-109  REZ      2065 Glenn Ferry Court

1 inch = 300 feet

Legend
CENTERLINES
Legal Lot Lines
Streams
Pond / Lake
Zoning
Forsyth County

Property of 
Request

Lewisville

¯

PIN(s):
5887-32-3982

500 ft. Buffer



ORDINANCE 2024-013 OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 
EXTEND THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE CORPORATE LIMITS TO INCLUDE 

2065 GLENN FERRY COURT 

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville has been petitioned under NCGS 160A-31 to annex the area 
described below; and,  

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council has by resolution directed the Town Clerk to investigate the 
sufficiency of the petition requesting annexation of property known as 2065 Glenn Ferry Court into 
the Town of Lewisville; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petition and a public hearing on the 
question of annexation was held at the Lewisville Town Hall, 6510 Shallowford Road, at 6 PM on 
Thursday, June 13, 2024 after due notice by the Winston-Salem Journal on Saturday, June 1, 2024;  

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council finds that the petition meets the requirements of NCGS 
160A-31.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that: 

Section 1.  By virtue of the authority granted by NCGS 160A-31, the following described territory 
is hereby annexed and made part of the Town of Lewisville as of June 13, 2024: 

2065 Glenn Ferry Court, Pfafftown, NC 27040 
PIN 5887-32-3982  

OFFICIAL METES AND BOUNDS FOLLOW: 
LYING AND BEING in Vienna Township, Forsyth County, North Carolina, and 
BEGINNING at stone, the southeast corner of the property of Seymour T. Solomon, 
now or formerly (Book 1000, Page 1, Forsyth County Registry); thence with the 
eastern property line of said Solomon, now or formerly, the following Five (5) courses 
and distances: (1) North 10° 19’ 25” East 270.66 feet to an existing iron pipe; (2) North 
06° 27’ 02” West 77.89 feet to an existing iron pipe; (3) North 29° 34’ 08” East 66.84 
feet to an existing pipe; (4) North 10° o7’ 15” East 91.77 feet to an existing iron pipe 
and (5) North 10° 10’ 33” East 134.94 feet to an existing iron pipe located in the 
southern property line of Alice S. Phillips, now or formerly (81 E 887/ 1-1-83, Forsyth 
County); thence with the southern property line or said Phillips, nor or formerly; South 
87° 58’ 53” East 666.75 feet to an existing iron pipe, the northwest corner of the 
property of James E Minick, now or formerly (Book 1333, Page 936, Forsyth County 
Registry); thence from said iron South 01° 35’ 42” West 460.25 feet to an existing iron 
pipe, the northeast corner of the property of Jay R. Harmel, now or formerly (Book 
1667, Page 1028, Forsyth County Registry); thence with the northern property line of 

Attachment #9



said Harmel, nor or formerly, South 84° o4’ 19” West 156.07 feet to an existing iron 
pipe; thence North 84° 06’ 05” West, crossing a 10’ gravel drive, 109.22 feet to an 
existing iron pipe, the northeast corner of the property of Wallace G. Getchell, nor or 
formerly (Book 1627 Page 902, Forsyth County Registry); thence with the northern 
property line of said Gretchell, nor or formerly, North 71° 02’ 15” West 202.77 feet to 
an existing iron pipe, the northwest corner of said Getchell property; thence with the 
western property line of said Getchell, now or formerly, South 19° 30’ 04” West 
215.04 feet to an existing iron pipe, the southwest corner of the aforementioned 
Getchell property; thence with the northern property line of Clifton E. Darnell, Sr., 
now or formerly (Book 1654, Page 1519, Forsyth County Registry), North 89° 55’ 38” 
West 238.80 feet to a stone, the point and place of BEGINNING and containing 8.398 
acres, more or less.  Being Tax Lot 24M, a portion of Tax Lot 24N and a portion of Tax 
Lot 118 of Tax Block 4617, Forsyth County Tax Records.  The foregoing description was 
taken from a plat of survey prepared by Larry L. Callahan Surveying Co., Inc.; dated 
6/14/93 and entitled “Map For Cynthia R. Bennett”. TOGETHER WITH AND SUBJECT 
TO a 30’ Access Easement (Book 1021, Page 577, Forsyth County Registry) and a 25’ 
Access Easement (Book 1410, Page 1001, Forsyth County Registry) to Glenn Ferry 
Road (S.R. 1441). 

Section 2.   Upon and after June 13, 2024, the above described territory shall be subject to all 
debts, laws, ordinance and regulations in force in the Town of Lewisville and shall be 
entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the of the Town of 
Lewisville.  Said territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according the NCGS 
160A-58.10.   

Section 3.   The Mayor of the Town of Lewisville shall cause to be recorded in the office of the 
Forsyth County Register of Deeds and the office of the North Carolina Secretary of 
State an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in Section 1 above, 
together with a duly certified copy of the ordinance.  Such map shall also be delivered 
to the Forsyth County Board of Elections as required by NCGS 163-288.1.    

Adopted this the 13th day of June 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

___________________________ 

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor 

____________________________ 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 





Attachment #10











DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: 1.ORDINANCE 2024-014 SIDEWALKS, BIKE PATHS, AND
GREENWAYS CAPITAL RESERVE

2. ORDINANCE 2024-015 MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS/LAND CAPITAL
RESERVE

3. ORDINANCE 2024-016 PUBLIC WORKS FACILITY CAPITAL
RESERVE

4. ORDINANCE 2024-017 PARKS AND RECREATION CAPITAL
RESERVE

SUBJECT: 1. ORDINANCE 2024-014 TO SUSPEND THE
CONTRIBUTION TO THE SIDEWALKS, BIKE PATHS,
AND GREENWAYS CAPITAL RESERVE FUND FOR FY
2024-2025

2. ORDINANCE 2024-015 TO SUSPEND THE CONTRIBUTION TO
THE MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS/LAND CAPITAL RESERVE
FUND FOR FY 2024-2025

3. ORDINANCE 2024-016 TO SUSPEND THE CONTRIBUTION TO
THE PUBLIC WORKS FACILITY CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
FOR FY 2024-2025

4. ORDINANCE 2024-017 TO SUSPEND THE CONTRIBUTION TO
THE PARKS AND RECREATION CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
FOR FY 2024-2025

PREPARED BY: PAM ORRELL, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

DATE SUBMITTED: 6/13/2024 



I:\TOWN COUNCIL\AGENDAS\2024 Agendas\06-2024 Agendas\06-06-2024 briefing\Staff Report-FY 2024-2025 Capital Reserves-No Contribution.docx 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

During budget discussions for FY 2024-2025, the Town Council determined that the annual contributions from the 
general fund to the following capital reserve funds would be suspended for FY 2024-2025: 

Sidewalks, Bike Paths & Greenways Capital 

Reserve
25,000$   

Municipal Buildings/Land Capital Reserve 170,000$     

Public Works Facility Capital Reserve 95,000$   

Parks & Recreation Capital Reserve 400,000$     

 Total 690,000$     

The required annual contribution to any capital reserve is always spelled out in the capital reserve ordinance when 
it is adopted or amended. When a decision is made by the governing board that this contribution is not to be made 
in any fiscal year, then the capital reserve ordinance must be amended to document the governing board’s decision. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION :  

1. Staff requests that Council approve Ordinance 2024-014 that documents Town Council’s decision to
suspend the contribution to the Sidewalks, Bike Paths, and Greenways Capital Reserve for FY 2024-2025.

2. Staff requests that Council approve Ordinance 2024-015 that documents Town Council’s decision to
suspend the contribution to the Municipal Buildings/Land Capital Reserve Fund for FY 2024-2025.

3. Staff requests that Council approve Ordinance 2024-016 that documents Town Council’s decision to
suspend the contribution to the Public Works Facility Capital Reserve Fund for FY 2024-2025.

4. Staff requests that Council approve Ordinance 2024-017 that documents Town Council’s decision to
suspend the contribution to the Parks and Recreation Capital Reserve Fund for FY 2024-2025.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The following transfers from the general fund to the various capital reserves will be suspended for FY 2024-2025: 

Sidewalks, Bike Paths & Greenways Capital 

Reserve
25,000$   

Municipal Buildings/Land Capital Reserve 170,000$     

Public Works Facility Capital Reserve 95,000$   

Parks & Recreation Capital Reserve 400,000$     

 Total 690,000$     



I:\TOWN COUNCIL\AGENDAS\2024 Agendas\06-2024 Agendas\06-06-2024 briefing\Staff Report-FY 2024-2025 Capital Reserves-No Contribution.docx 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 2024-014
2. Ordinance 2024-015
3. Ordinance 2024-016
4. Ordinance 2024-017



ORDINANCE 2024-014 OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

AMENDING THE  

SIDEWALKS, BIKE PATHS & GREENWAYS CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council adopted Resolution 2006036 on June 8, 2006 authorizing the 
establishment of the Sidewalks Construction Capital Reserve Fund; and, 

WHEREAS, this fund will remain operational for a period not to exceed ten years (beginning July 1, 
2006 and ending June 30, 2016) or until a cumulative sum not to exceed $250,000 has been received; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council will appropriate or transfer an amount of no less than 
$25,000 each year from the General Fund to this fund; and, 

WHEREAS, Resolution 2006036 was corrected to Ordinance 2006047 on June 4, 2009; and 

WHEREAS, Resolution 2007008 changed the name to Sidewalks/Bike Paths Capital Reserve Fund and 
also was amended by Ordinance 2006047 on June 4, 2009; and, 

WHEREAS, Town Council has suspended annual transfer of $25,000 from the General Fund to the 
Sidewalks/Bike Paths Construction Capital Reserve Fund during Fiscal Year 2009-2010; and, 

WHEREAS, Town Council, upon review of the proposed budget for FY 2010-2011, suspended the 
annual transfer of $25,000 from the General Fund to the Sidewalks/Bike Paths Construction Capital 
Reserve Fund during Fiscal Year 2010-2011; and, 

WHEREAS, Town Council, upon review of the proposed budget for FY 2011-2012, suspended the 
annual transfer of $25,000 from the General Fund to the Sidewalks/Bike Paths Construction Capital 
Reserve Fund during Fiscal Year 2011-2012; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Council suspended the annual transfer of $25,000 from the General Fund to the 
Sidewalks/Bike Paths Construction Capital Reserve Fund during FY 2012-2013; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Council suspended the annual transfer of $25,000 from the General Fund to the 
Sidewalks/Bike Paths Construction Capital Reserve Fund during FY 2013-2014; and, 

WHEREAS, on June 12, 2014, the Lewisville Town Council approved the appropriation or transfer of 
an amount of no less than $25,000 each year from the General Fund to this fund for FY 2014-2015 and 
continue annual transfers to June 30, 2016 or until a cumulative sum not to exceed $250,000 has been 
received; and, 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council has been informed that the Lewisville-Vienna Sidewalk 

Attachment #11



Extension Grant Project costs have increased, and, 

WHEREAS, the Capital Reserve Fund for Sidewalks/Bike Paths has an accumulated amount of 
$102,648.15 as of August 31, 2014; and, 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Capital Reserve Fund for Sidewalks/Bike Paths is to construct new 
sidewalks/Bike Paths; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 3 was amended in October 2014 to transfer $100,000 to the Lewisville-Vienna 
Sidewalk Extension Grant Project from the Capital Reserve Sidewalks/Bike Paths; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has been informed that there has been a change to the engineering for 
the drainage pipe in the Lewisville-Vienna Sidewalk Project; and, 

WHEREAS, The Lewisville Town Council will continue to appropriate or transfer an amount of no less 
than $25,000 each fiscal year from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund to June 30, 2025 
or until an accumulative sum not to exceed $250,000 has been received; and 

WHEREAS, in June, 2015, the Town Council transferred $1,667 to the Lewisville-Vienna Sidewalk 
Extension Grant Project from the Capital Reserve Sidewalks/Bikepaths; and, 

WHEREAS, Town Council has directed staff to close the Greenways Capital Reserve Fund and to 
transfer all monies into the Sidewalks/Bikepaths/Greenways Capital Reserve Fund; and, 

WHEREAS, the amount being transferred is $100,127.24 and any future dividends; and, 

WHEREAS, also at its meeting in July 2015 the Town Council ordained that the Sidewalks/Bikepaths 
Capital Reserve Fund be renamed the Sidewalks/Bikepaths/Greenways Capital Reserve Fund; and, 

WHEREAS, there is a need to fund Supplemental Agreement #2 for drainage measures for the Grant 
Project Lewisville-Vienna Sidewalk Extension in the amount of $6,379.59; and, 

WHEREAS, $6,379.59 was transferred into the Grant Project - Lewisville-Vienna Sidewalk Extension for 
construction in August, 2015; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Council will continue to appropriate or transfer an amount of no less than 
$25,000 each fiscal year from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund to June 30, 2025 or until 
the fund reaches a balance of $250,000; and, 

WHEREAS, there was a need to fund the purchase of right of way and/or utilities, preliminary 
engineering, and construction for the Gateway Project and $125,546.44 was transferred to the 
Gateway Project Capital Projects Fund; and,  



WHEREAS, there was a need to fund the purchase of right-of-way and/or utilities, preliminary 
engineering, and construction of the Lewisville-Vienna Multi-Use Path and $188,100 was 
transferred to the Lewisville-Vienna Multipurpose Path Capital Projects Fund in August, 2023; 
and 

WHEREAS, during budget discussions for FY 2024-2025, the Lewisville Town Council decided 
there would be no contributions to this reserve for the FY 2024-2025. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL: 

No contributions will be made to the Sidewalks, Bike Paths, and Greenways Capital Reserve Fund 
in FY 2024-2025. 

Adopted this the 13th day of June, 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

___________________________ 

Mike Horn, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



ORDINANCE 2024-015 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS AND LAND 

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville established a Municipal Building Capital Reserve Fund by Resolution 

2006035 for the purpose of constructing the municipal building; and, 

WHEREAS, this fund will remain operational for a period not to exceed ten years (beginning July 1, 2006 

and ending June 30, 2016) or until a cumulative sum not to exceed $1,500,000 has been received; and, 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council will appropriate or transfer an amount no less than $150,000 each 

year from the General Fund to this fund; and,  

WHEREAS, a transfer was made from the General Fund in the amount of $150,000 during FY 2006-007 

and $150,000 during FY 2007-2008; and, 

WHEREAS, Resolution 2006035 was corrected and suspended for FY 2008-2009 to Ordinance 20060048 

on June 4, 2009; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Council authorized the transfer of $130,000 of the accumulated funds to the Capital 

Projects Municipal Building Fund for FY 2008-2009 by Ordinance 2008021; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Council met on June 4, 2009 and determined that this fund may be used for other 

municipal buildings in the future; and, 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2009023 amended the Municipal Building Capital Reserve Fund to Municipal 

Buildings Capital Reserve Fund; and, 

WHEREAS, Town Council, upon review of proposed budget for FY 2009-2010, suspended the annual 

transfer of $150,000 from the General Fund to this fund during FY 2009-2010; and, 

WHEREAS, Town Council met on February 13, 2010 and determined that this fund may be used for land 

in addition to future municipal buildings and transferred $30,253 to Capital Project Municipal 

Buildings/Town Hall during FY 2009-2010; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 1 has been amended to read, “The Lewisville Town Council hereby creates a Capital 

Reserve Fund for the purpose of purchasing land and constructing municipal buildings.”; and,  

Attachment #12



WHEREAS, Town Council, upon review of the proposed budget for FY 2010-2011, suspended the annual 

transfer of $150,000 from the General Fund to this fund during FY 2010-2011 and transferred $6,300.29 

to Capital Projects Municipal Building/Town Hall; and, 

WHEREAS, Town Council has approved a transfer to the Capital Projects Fund Maintenance Facility Jack 

Warren Park for construction of the facility in the amount of $55,000 for FY 2011-2012; and, 

WHEREAS, Town Council, upon review of the proposed budget for FY 2011-2012, transferred$100,000 for 

FY 2011-2012 to Municipal Buildings and Land Capital Reserve Fund from the General Fund for FY 2011-

2012; and, 

WHEREAS, Town Council, upon review of the proposed budget for FY 2012-2013, transferred $100,000 

for FY 2012-2013 to the Municipal Buildings and Land Capital Reserve Fund from the General Fund for FY 

2012-2013; and, 

WHEREAS, Town Council, upon review of the proposed budget for FY 2013-2014, transferred $100,000 

for FY 2013-2014 to the Municipal Buildings and Land Capital Reserve Fund from the General Fund for FY 

2013-2014; and, 

WHEREAS, on June 12, 2014, the Lewisville Town Council amended Ordinance 2006048 to read: 

Section 3.  The Lewisville Town Council will appropriate or transfer an amount of no less than $100,000 

from the General Fund to this fund for FY 2014-2015; and, 

WHEREAS, Town Council upon review of the proposed budget for FY 2015-2016 transferred $100,000 

from the General Fund to this fund; and, 

WHEREAS, at its meeting on Mya 5, 2016, upon review of the this fund, Council directed Ordinance 

2006048 to be amended; and 

WHEREAS, at its meeting on May 12, 2016, Town Council amended Sections 2 and 3 as follows: 

Section 2.  This fund will remain operational for a period not to exceed ten years (beginning July 1, 

2006 and ending June 30, 2016) or until a cumulative sum not to exceed $1,500,000 has 

been received.  This ordinance is amended to remain operational for an additional period 

of ten (10) years beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2026 or until the fund reaches 

a balance of one million five hundred thousand dollars ($1,500,000). 

Section 3.  The Lewisville Town Council will appropriate or transfer an amount of no less than $100,000 

from the General Fund to this fund for FY 2016-2017; and, 

WHEREAS, on August 9, 2018, Section 2 of Ordinance 2006048 was amended as follows: 



Effective with FY 2017-2018, the ordinance is amended to appropriate or transfer an amount of no less 

than $170,000 each fiscal year from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund to June 30, 2026 or 

until the fund reaches a balance of $1,500,000. 

WHEREAS, on July 9, 2020, Section 3 of Ordinance 2006048 was amended as follows: 

Amendment 1.  The Town Council, at its meeting on April 15, 2019, transferred funds in the amount 

of $16,000 to the Community Center Capital Project Fund. 

Amendment 2.  The Town Council, at its meeting on October 10, 2019, transferred funds in the 

amount of $379,000 to the Community Center Capital Projects Fund. 

Amendment 3.  The Town Council, at its meeting on November 7, 2019, transferred funds in the 

amount of $28,200 to the Community Center Capital Projects Fund. 

WHEREAS, on June 14, 2021, Section 3 of Ordinance 2006048 was amended as follows: 

Amendment 1.  The Town Council, at its meeting on August 13, 2020, transferred funds in the amount 

of $997,788 to the Community Center Capital Project Fund.  

Amendment 2.  The Town Council, at its meeting on June 14, 2021, transferred funds in the amount 

of $170,000 from the Municipal Storm Water Capital Reserve Fund to this fund. 

Amendment 3.  During discussion for FY 2021-2022 budget, Council determined there would be no 

transfers to this capital reserve from the General Fund.  The Municipal Buildings and 

Land Capital Reserve Fund was amended for FY 2021-2022 to suspend funding for FY 

2021-2022 to be resumed during FY 2022-2023. 

WHEREAS, on June 9, 2022, Section 3 of Ordinance 2006048 was amended as follows: 

Amendment 1.  During discussions for FY 2022-2023 budget, Council determined there would be no 

transfers to this capital reserve from the General Fund.  The Municipal Buildings and 

Land Capital Reserve Fund is amended for FY 2022-2023 to suspend funding for FY 

2022-2023 to be resumed during FY 2023-2024. 

WHEREAS, during budget discussions for FY 2023-2024, the Lewisville Town Council determined that no 

contributions would be made to this capital reserve during FY 2023-2024. 

WHEREAS, during budget discussions for FY 2024-2025, the Lewisville Town Council determined that no 

contributions would be made to this capital reserve during FY 2024-2025. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL: 

No contributions will be made to the Municipal Buildings/Land Capital Reserve Fund for FY 2024-2025. 



Adopted the 13th day of June, 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

____________________________ 

ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

______________________ 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



ORDINANCE 2024-016 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING THE PUBLIC WORKS FACILITY 

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

WHEREAS, on June 14, 2021, the Lewisville Town Council approved Ordinance 2021-030 

establishing the Public Works Facility Capital Reserve Fund for the construction of a public works 

facility; and 

WHEREAS, it was determined the Town must bear the cost of purchasing land and constructing 

the public works facility at an estimated cost of $1,000,000. 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Facility Capital Reserve Ordinance was approved with the following 

points: 

Section 1. The Lewisville Town Council hereby creates a Capital Reserve Fund for the 

purpose of purchasing land and constructing a public works facility. 

Section 2. This fund will remain operational for a period not to exceed ten years 

(beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2031) or until the capital reserve 

fund reaches a balance of $1,000,000. 

Section 3. The Lewisville Town Council will appropriate or transfer an amount of no less 

than $95,000 each year from the General Fund to this fund. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption. 

WHEREAS, a transfer in the amount of $234,681.97 was made into the Public Works Facility 

Capital Reserve Fund from the Storm Water Capital Reserve Fund when it was closed in June, 

2021. 

WHEREAS, during budget discussions for FY 2022-2023, the Lewisville Town Council 

determined that an additional contribution of $400,000 would be made from the General Fund in 

addition to the regular transfer of $95,000 during the FY 2022-2023. 

WHEREAS, during budget discussion for FY 2023-2024, the Lewisville Town Council determined 

that no contributions would be made to this capital reserve during the FY 2023-2024. 

WHEREAS, during budget discussion for FY 2024-2025, the Lewisville Town Council determined 

that no contributions would be made to this capital reserve during the FY 2024-2025. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL THAT: 

Attachment #13



No contributions will be made to the Public Works Facility Capital Reserve Fund for the FY 2024-

2025. 

Adopted the 13th day of June, 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

___________________________ 

Mike Horn 

Mayor 

ATTEST 

__________________________ 

Dora K. Moore 

Town Clerk 



ORDINANCE 2024-017 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING THE PARKS & RECREATION CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

WHEREAS, on June 9, 2022, the Lewisville Town Council approved Ordinance 2022-026 establishing the 

Parks & Recreation Capital Reserve Fund for the purpose of purchasing land for parks and/or constructing 

additional amenities and facilities for parks and recreation. 

WHEREAS, the terms of the Parks & Recreation Capital Reserve Fund are as follows: 

Section 1. The Lewisville Town Council hereby creates a Capital Reserve Fund for the purpose of 

purchasing land for parks and/or constructing amenities and facilities for parks and 

recreation. 

Section 2. This fund will remain operational for a period not to exceed ten years (beginning July 1, 

2022 and ending June 30, 2032) or until the capital reserve fund reaches a balance of 

$1,500,000. 

Section 3. The Lewisville Town Council will appropriate or transfer an amount of no less than 

$400,000 each year from the General Fund to this fund. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption. 

WHEREAS, during budget discussions for FY 2023-2024, the Lewisville Town Council determined that the 

contribution to the Parks & Recreation Capital Reserve Fund from the General Fund would be $100,000 

for FY 2023-2024.  

WHEREAS, on June 8, 2023, the Town Council amended the ordinance to state that the annual 

contribution from the General Fund to this reserve would be $100,000 in FY 2023-2024. 

WHEREAS, during budget discussions for FY 2023-2024, the Lewisville Town Council decided to amend 

the capital reserve ordinance to indicate that construction of future amenities and facilities may include 

a dog park, an all-inclusive park, and any other parks and recreation amenities deemed appropriate by 

the Lewisville Town Council.  

WHEREAS, on June 8, 2023 the Town Council amended the scope in Section 1 to read as follows: 

Section 1. The Lewisville Town Council hereby creates a Capital Reserve Fund for the 

purpose of purchasing land for parks and/or constructing amenities and facilities for parks 

and recreation that may include a dog park, an all-inclusive park, and any other parks and 

recreation amenities deemed appropriate by the Lewisville Town Council. 

Attachment #14



WHEREAS, there was a need to fund the construction of improvements at Jack Warren Park in relation to 

a PARTF grant and $459,854.22 was transferred from this reserve to the Jack Warren Park Improvements 

Capital Projects Fund in July, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, there was a need to fund the construction of improvements at Jack Warren Park in relation to 

a PARTF grant and $58,736 was transferred from this reserve to the Jack Warren Park Improvements 

Capital Projects Fund in May, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, during budget discussions for FY 2024-2025, the Lewisville Town Council decided no 

contributions would be made to this capital reserve during FY 2024-2025. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL THAT: 

No contributions will be made to the Parks & Recreation Capital Reserve Fund for FY 2024-2025. 

Adopted the 13th day of June, 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

____________________________ 

ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

______________________ 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



NORTH CAROLINA 

FORSYTH COUNTY 

ORDINANCE 2024-018 

ORDER OF THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S.105-321 AND G.S. 153A-156 

FOR THE COLLECTION OF 2024 TAXES 

TO: JOHN T. BURGISS, RES 

TAX COLLECTOR OF FORSYTH COUNTY, CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, 

VILLAGE OF CLEMMONS, VILLAGE OF TOBACCOVILLE, TOWN OF LEWISVILLE, 

TOWN OF RURAL HALL, TOWN OF WALKERTOWN, CITY OF KING,  

TOWN OF KERNERSVILLE, TOWN OF BETHANIA, CITY OF HIGH POINT 

You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes set forth in the 2024 tax records filed in the 
Office of the Forsyth County Tax Collector, and in the tax receipts herewith delivered to you in the amounts and from the taxpayers 
likewise therein set forth.  You are further authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the 2024 taxes charged and assessed 
as provided by law for adjustments, changes, and additions to the tax records and tax receipts delivered to you which are made in 
accordance with law.  Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien on all real property of the respective taxpayers in Forsyth 
County, City of Winston-Salem, Town of Rural Hall, Town of Walkertown, Village of Clemmons, Village of Tobaccoville, Town of 
Bethania, Town of Lewisville, City of King, Town of Kernersville, City of High Point, Beeson’s Cross Roads Fire Protection District, 
Beeson’s Cross Roads Service District, Belews Creek Fire and Rescue Protection District, City View Fire Protection District, Clemmons 
Fire and Rescue Protection District, Forest Hill Fire and Rescue Protection District, Griffith Fire Protection District, Gumtree Fire and 
Rescue Protection District, Horneytown Fire and Rescue Protection District, King of Forsyth County Fire and Rescue Protection District, 
Lewisville Fire and Rescue Protection District, Mineral Springs Fire Protection District, Mineral Springs Service District, Mount Tabor 
Fire and Rescue Protection District, Northeast Fire and Rescue Protection District, Old Richmond Fire and Rescue Protection District, 
Piney Grove Fire Protection District, Suburban Fire and Rescue Protection District, Salem Chapel Fire and Rescue Protection District, 
South Fork Fire Protection District, Talley’s Crossing Fire and Rescue Protection District, Triangle Fire Protection District, Union Cross 
Fire and Rescue Protection District, Vienna Fire Protection District, West Bend Service District, Downtown Winston-Salem Business 
Improvement District, Willow Run Municipal Service District, and Countywide Service District, and this order shall be a full and 
sufficient authority to direct, require, and enable you to levy on and sell, any real or personal property, and attach wages and/or other 
funds, of such taxpayers, for and on account thereof, in accordance with law. You are hereby authorized and directed to use any 
method of collections authorized by law to collect such taxes including, without limitation, the in-rem method of foreclosure 
authorized by NCGS § 105-375, the mortgage style of foreclosure authorized by NCGS § 105-374. 

You are also hereby authorized, empowered and commanded to administer and to collect taxes on gross receipts derived 

from retail short-term leases or rentals of motor vehicles as set forth under G.S. 153A-156.  You are hereby authorized to promulgate 

such rules and procedures necessary to administer these taxes which are not inconsistent or contrary to applicable law. 

You are also hereby authorized, to the full extent permitted by law, to collect liens that attach to real property under NCGS 
chapters 160D, 160A, or 153A, including but not limited to those that arise by reason of removal of a structure to the extent 
authorized by state and local law, and sanitation liens that arise under § 160A-193 or 153A-140. 

Within available funds in the budget ordinance and personnel positions established, the Tax Collector may appoint employees 

and authorize them to perform those functions authorized by the Machinery Act of Chapter 105 of the North Carolina General Statutes 

and other applicable laws for current and previous years’ taxes.  County personnel presently in the Tax Collector’s office continue to 

serve in their respective positions at the discretion of the Tax Collector. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this the _________ day of _________________________, 2024. 

   ________________________________________________ 
ATTEST:   MIKE HORN, MAYOR, TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

___________________________________ 
DORA K. MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

Attachment #15



NORTH CAROLINA 

FORSYTH COUNTY 
ORDINANCE 2024-019 

ORDER OF THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S.105-373, G.S.105-321, AND G.S.105-330.3 

FOR THE COLLECTION OF 2023 AND PRIOR YEARS’ TAXES 

TO: JOHN T. BURGISS, RES 
TAX COLLECTOR OF FORSYTH COUNTY, CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, 
VILLAGE OF CLEMMONS, VILLAGE OF TOBACCOVILLE, TOWN OF  
LEWISVILLE, TOWN OF RURAL HALL, TOWN OF WALKERTOWN, CITY OF  
KING, TOWN OF KERNERSVILLE, TOWN OF BETHANIA, CITY OF HIGH POINT 

You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes remaining unpaid as set forth in the 
2015 through 2023 tax records filed in the Office of the Forsyth County Tax Collector, and in the tax receipts herewith 
delivered to you in the amounts and from the taxpayers likewise therein set forth.  You are further authorized, 
empowered, and commanded to collect the 2015 through 2023 taxes charged and assessed as provided by law for 
adjustments, changes, and additions to the tax records and tax receipts delivered to you which are made in accordance 
with law.  Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien on all real property of the respective taxpayers in Forsyth 
County, City of Winston-Salem, Town of Rural Hall, Town of Walkertown, Village of Clemmons, Village of Tobaccoville, 
Town of Bethania, Town of Lewisville, City of King, Town of Kernersville, City of High Point, Beeson’s Cross Roads Fire 
Protection District, Beeson’s Cross Roads Service District, Belews Creek Fire and Rescue Protection District, City View Fire 
Protection District, Clemmons Fire and Rescue Protection District, Forest Hill Fire and Rescue Protection District, Griffith 
Fire Protection District, Gumtree Fire and Rescue Protection District, Horneytown Fire and Rescue Protection District, King 
of Forsyth County Fire and Rescue Protection District, Lewisville Fire and Rescue Protection District, Mineral Springs Fire 
Protection District, Mineral Springs Service District, Mount Tabor Fire and Rescue Protection District, Northeast Fire and 
Rescue Protection District, Old Richmond Fire and Rescue Protection District, Piney Grove Fire Protection District, 
Suburban Fire and Rescue Protection District, Salem Chapel Fire and Rescue Protection District, South Fork Fire Protection 
District, Talley’s Crossing Fire and Rescue Protection District, Triangle Fire Protection District, Union Cross Fire and Rescue 
Protection District, Vienna Fire Protection District and West Bend Service District, Downtown Winston-Salem Business 
Improvement District, Willow Run Municipal Service District, and Countywide Service District, and this order shall be a full 
and sufficient authority to direct, require, and enable you to levy on and sell, any real or personal property, and attach 
wages and/or other funds, of such taxpayers, for and on account thereof, in accordance with law. 

Within available funds in the budget ordinance and personnel positions established, the Tax Collector may appoint 
employees and authorize them to perform those functions authorized by the Machinery Act of Chapter 105 of the North 
Carolina General Statutes and other applicable laws for current and previous years’ taxes.  County personnel presently in 
the Tax Collector’s office continue to serve in their respective positions in the discretion of the Tax Collector. 

Taxes on registered classified Motor Vehicles for 2020 and prior years are deemed uncollectible; therefore, the 
Forsyth County Commissioners, pursuant to G.S. 105-373(h) do hereby relieve the tax collector of the charge of collecting 
taxes on registered classified motor vehicles listed pursuant to G.S. 105-330.3(a)(1) for 2020 and prior years. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this the _________ day of _________________________, 2024. 

________________________________________________
 MIKE HORN, MAYOR, TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

ATTEST:  

_________________________________ 
DORA K. MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

Attachment #16



RESOLUTION 2024-026 OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

AWARDING JANITORIAL SERVICE CONTRACT FOR 

JACK WARREN PARK, SHALLOWFORD SQUARE, TOWN HALL ANNEX AND G. GALLOWAY 

REYNOLDS COMMUNITY CENTER 

WHEREAS, Executive Cleaning Service provided a price for janitorial service at Jack Warren Park, 
Shallowford Square, Town Hall Annex and G. Galloway Reynolds Community Center; and,  

WHEREAS, the janitorial service for Jack Warren Park, Shallowford Square, Town Hall Annex and G. 
Galloway Reynolds Community Center has been reviewed and itemized for fiscal years 2024-2025, 
2025-2026 and 2026-2027; and,     

WHEREAS, the cost for Jack Warren Park, Shallowford Square, Town Hall Annex and G. Galloway 
Reynolds Community Center janitorial service for fiscal year 2024-2025 is for an amount not to 
exceed $16,350; for fiscal year 2025-2026 is for an amount not to exceed $16,842; and, for fiscal 
year 2026-2027 is for an amount not to exceed $17,304.     

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that the Town Manager 
is authorized to sign a contract and other related documents with Executive Cleaning Service for 
janitorial services at Jack Warren Park, Shallowford Square, Town Hall Annex and G. Galloway 
Reynolds Community Center in an amount not to exceed $16,350 for fiscal year 2024-2025, 
$16,842 for fiscal year 2025-2026, and $17,304 for fiscal year 2026-2027 effective July 1, 2024. 

Adopted this the 13th day of June 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

___________________________ 

Mike Horn, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #17



RESOLUTION 2024-027 OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

AWARDING JANITORIAL SERVICE CONTRACT FOR TOWN HALL 

WHEREAS, Executive Cleaning Service provided a price for janitorial service at Town Hall; and, 

WHEREAS, the janitorial service for Town Hall has been reviewed and itemized for fiscal years 2024-
2025, 2025-2026 and 2026-2027; and,     

WHEREAS, the cost for Town Hall janitorial service for fiscal year 2024-2025 is for an amount not to 
exceed $8,904; for fiscal year 2025-2026 is for an amount not to exceed $9,120; and, for fiscal year 
2026-2027 for an amount not to exceed $9,360.     

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that the Town Manager 
is authorized to sign a contract and other related documents with Executive Cleaning Service for 
Town Hall janitorial services in an amount not to exceed $8,904 for fiscal year 2024-2025, $9,120 
for fiscal year 2025-2026, and $9,360 for fiscal year 2026-2027 effective July 1, 2024. 

Adopted this the 13th day of June 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

___________________________ 

Mike Horn, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #18



RESOLUTION 2024-028 OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

AWARDING HORTICULTURAL CONTRACT 

WHEREAS, Hauser Horticulture, Inc. has been chosen to horticulturally maintain the Town’s shrubs 
trees and flower beds and to provide all the peripheral materials associated with the maintenance; 
and,  

WHEREAS, the cost for fiscal year 2024-2025 is for an amount not to exceed $95,616.    

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that the Town Manager 
is authorized to sign a contract and other related documents with Hauser Horticulture, Inc. in 
an amount not to exceed $95,616 for fiscal year 2024-2025 effective July 1, 2024. 

Adopted this the 13th day of June 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

___________________________ 

Mike Horn, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #19



RESOLUTION 2024-029 OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

AWARDING GROUNDS MAINTENANCE SERVICE CONTRACT 

WHEREAS, Lawn Masters of the Triad d/b/a Yards by Us has been chosen to provide grounds 
maintenance for the Town of Lewisville; and,  

WHEREAS, the grounds maintenance has been reviewed and itemized for fiscal years 2024-2025; 
and,     

WHEREAS, the cost for grounds maintenance for fiscal year 2024-2025 is as follows: 
Area 1 – Municipal grounds/rights-of-way $61,302.12 
Area 2 – MSD dams $   3,600.00    
Area 3 – MSD guardrails $  440.00 
Area 4 – Unkempt lots as service required $  65.00/hour 
Extra services as requested $  65.00/hour 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that the Town Manager 
is authorized to sign a contract and other related documents with Lawn Masters of the Triad 
d/b/a Yards by Us in the amounts as identified in the contract for fiscal year 2024-2025 effective 
July 1, 2024. 

Adopted this the 13th day of June 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

___________________________ 

Mike Horn, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #20



RESOLUTION 2024-030 OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

AWARDING SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL CONTRACT 

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Town to be prepared for winter storms and to have a contractor on stand-
by should there be a snow or ice storm; and,  

WHEREAS, it is necessary to pre-determine a company for mobilization of the necessary equipment and 
manpower per the North Carolina Department of Transportation; and,  

WHEREAS, it is prudent to secure a three-year contract beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2027. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that the Town Manager is 
authorized to sign a contract and other related documents with Spease Lawn Care, LLC effective July 1, 
2024. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that Spease Lawn Care, LLC will be paid 
an hourly rate as follows: 

FY 2024-2025  
Plow truck  $   250.00/hour/truck 
Supervisor truck $     75.00/hour 

FY 2025-2026  
Plow truck $   260.00/hour/truck 
Supervisor truck $     75.00/hour 

FY 2026-2027  
Plow truck $   270.00/hour/truck 
Supervisor truck $     75.00/hour 

A retainer fee of $8,000 will be paid at the end of the season if there are no winter storm events. 

Adopted this the 13th day of June 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

___________________________ 

Mike Horn, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #21



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: 1.ORDINANCE 2024-020

SUBJECT: 1. AMENDING GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE FOR THE
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT OF 2021:
CORONAVIRUS STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL
RECOVERY FUNDS

PREPARED BY: PAM ORRELL, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

DATE SUBMITTED: 6/13/2024 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The Town of Lewisville has received a total of $4,024,471.50 in ARPA funding. This money is housed in a 
separate fund of the Town (outside of the General Fund) until it can be spent on qualifying expenditures 
allowed by the United States Treasury. On March 10, 2022, the Lewisville Town Council established a 
Grant Project Ordinance for the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021: Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal 
Recovery Funds (Grant Project Ordinance). It states that the Town has elected to take the “standard 
allowance” which allows the Town to use up to $1 million in ARPA funds as revenue replacement to be 
spent for the provision of government services. At the recommendation of the UNC School of Government 
and the NC League of Municipalities, and in order to minimize the administrative burden that accompanies 
the use of federal money, the Town Council opted to use the ARPA money to cover the cost of Town staff 
salaries and related benefits. As staff salaries and benefits are paid out of the General Fund, transfers are 
made from the ARPA Fund to the General Fund to reimburse the General Fund. 

The Grant Project Ordinance outlines the budget and timeline for the use of the ARPA funds. The Town 
has until December 31, 2024 to use its ARPA funding for the reimbursement to the General Fund for 
salaries and benefits. Staff is requesting that Council approve an amendment to the Grant Project 
Ordinance to incorporate the salaries and benefits for the FY 2024-2025. 

 In summary, the proposed amendment to the Grant Project Ordinance is as follows: 



I:\TOWN COUNCIL\AGENDAS\2024 Agendas\06-2024 Agendas\06-06-2024 briefing\Staff Report-Amend ARPA Grant Project Ord 6-13-2024.docx 

Expenditure Current Budget Budget as Amended

Salaries and Benefits for the period 

April 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022
1,208,168.14$   1,208,168.14$   

Salaries and Benefits for the period 

July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023
1,105,602.57$   1,105,602.57$   

Salaries and Benefits for the period 

July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024
1,515,461.00$   1,320,142.11$   

Salaries and Benefits for the period 

July 1, 2024 through December 31, 

2024

-$   390,558.68$   

Unassigned 195,239.79$   -$   

Total 4,024,471.50$   4,024,471.50$   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION :  

1. Staff is requesting that Council approve Ordinance 2024-020 to amend the Grant Project
Ordinance for the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021: Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery
Funds.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This amendment proposes to transfer up to $1,320,142.11 in ARPA funds to the General Fund in FY 2023-

2024 to reimburse for salaries and benefits. This amendment also proposes to transfer up to $390,558.68 

in ARPA funds to the General Fund in FY 2024-2025 to reimburse for salaries and benefits. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 2024-020



TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 
ORDINANCE 2024-020 

AMENDING GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE FOR THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT OF 
2021: CORONAVIRUS STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS 

WHEREAS, on March 10, 2022, the Lewisville Town Council established the Grant Project 
Ordinance for the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021: Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal 
Recovery Funds pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North 
Carolina. 

WHEREAS, the ordinance established a budget for a project to be funded by the Coronavirus 
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds of H.R. 1319 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 
(ARP/CSLFRF). The Town of Lewisville (Town) received the first tranche in the amount of 
$2,012,235.75 in 2021. The remainder, or second tranche of $2,012,235.75, was received by 
the Town in 2022. These funds, which total $4,024,471.50, may be used for the following 
categories of expenditures, to the extent authorized by state law. 

1. Support public health expenditures, by funding COVID-19 mitigation efforts, medical
expenses, behavioral healthcare, and certain public health and safety staff;

2. Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency, including
economic harms to workers, households, small businesses, impacted industries, and the
public sector;

3. Replace lost public sector revenue, using this funding to provide government services to
the extent of the reduction in revenue experienced due to the pandemic;

4. Provide premium pay for essential workers, offering additional support to those who
have borne and will bear the greatest health risks because of their service in critical
infrastructure sectors; and,

5. Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure, making necessary investments to
improve access to clean drinking water, support vital wastewater and stormwater
infrastructure, and to expand access to broadband internet.

WHEREAS, the Town has elected to take the standard allowance, as authorized by 31 CFR 
Part 35.6(d)(1) and expend its ARP/CSLFRF funds for the provision of government services. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED that the Town of Lewisville desires to amend Section 3 
of Ordinance 2022-035 as follows: 

Section 3: The following amounts are appropriate for the project and authorized for 
expenditure: 

Attachment #22



Project Description
Expenditure 

Category

Cost 

Object

Appropriation of 

ARP/CSLFRF 

Salaries  $         404,209.55 

Benefits  $         114,149.44 

Salaries  $         182,900.45 

Benefits  $ 61,810.82 

Salaries  $         101,406.56 

Benefits  $ 33,864.63 

Salaries  $         223,680.20 

Benefits  $ 86,146.49 

Subtotal - Salaries and Benefits for the 

period of April 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 

(Actual)

 $      1,208,168.14 

Salaries  $         318,793.87 

Benefits  $         100,515.44 

Salaries  $         175,888.81 

Benefits  $ 57,690.38 

Salaries  $         134,456.39 

Benefits  $ 46,299.78 

Salaries  $         199,045.21 

Benefits  $ 72,912.69 

Subtotal - Salaries and Benefits for the 

period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 

(Actual)

 $      1,105,602.57 

Public Works services for period of July 1, 2022 

through June 30, 2023
6.1

Administration services for period of July 1, 2022 

through June 30, 2023
6.1

Finance services for period of July 1, 2022 

through June 30, 2023
6.1

Planning services for period of July 1, 2022 

through June 30, 2023
6.1

Public Works services for period of April 1, 2021 

through June 30, 2022
6.1

Administration services for period of April 1, 

2021 through June 30, 2022
6.1

Finance services for period of April 1, 2021 

through June 30, 2022
6.1

Planning services for period of April 1, 2021 

through June 30, 2022
6.1

continued 



Project Description
Expenditure 

Category

Cost 

Object

Appropriation of 

ARP/CSLFRF

Salaries 400,156.67$         

Benefits 149,832.96$         

Salaries 186,705.03$         

Benefits 69,156.60$  

Salaries 134,557.85$         

Benefits 55,283.59$  

Salaries 231,181.79$         

Benefits 93,267.62$  

Subtotal - Salaries and Benefits for the 

period of July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 

(Estimate)

1,320,142.11$      

Salaries 118,393.96$         

Benefits 44,039.40$  

Salaries 50,878.08$  

Benefits 19,199.86$  

Salaries 41,219.56$  

Benefits 17,047.89$  

Salaries 70,913.74$  

Benefits 28,866.19$  

Subtotal - Salaries and Benefits for the 

period of July 1, 2024 through December 31, 

2024 (Estimate)

390,558.68$         

Unassigned -$         

Total 4,024,471.50$      

Public Works services for period of July 1, 2024 

through December 31, 2024
6.1

Administration services for period of July 1, 2024 

through December 31, 2024
6.1

Finance services for period of July 1, 2024 

through December 31, 2024
6.1

Planning services for period of July 1, 2024 

through December 31, 2024
6.1

Public Works services for period of July 1, 2023 

through June 30, 2024

6.1

6.1

Administration services for period of July 1, 2023 

through June 30, 2024
6.1

Finance services for period of July 1, 2023 

through June 30, 2024
6.1

Planning services for period of July 1, 2023 

through June 30, 2024



Section 4: The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete the project: 

ARP/CSLFRF Funds  $4,024,471.50 

Section 5: The Finance Director is hereby directed to maintain sufficient specific detailed 
accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the grantor agency and the grant agreements, 
including payroll documentation and effort certifications, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.430 & 2 
CFR 200.431 and the Town’s Uniform Guidance Allowable Costs and Cost Principles Policy.  

Section 6: The Finance Director is hereby directed to report the financial status of the project to 
the governing board on a monthly basis. 

Section 7: Copies of this grant project ordinance shall be furnished to the Budget Officer, the 
Finance Director and to the Clerk of the Town Council. 

Section 8: This grant project ordinance expires on December 31, 2026, or when all the 
ARP/CSLFRF funds have been obligated and expended by the Town, whichever occurs sooner. 

Adopted this the 13th of June, 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

APPROVED: _________________________ 
Mike Horn, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



TOWN OF LEWISVILLE  
2024-003 APPOINTMENT ORDER 

TRIAD MUNICIPAL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL SYSTEM BOARD 

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville belongs to the consolidated Alcoholic Beverage Control System which 
serves Forsyth, Guilford, Davie, and Yadkin Counties as provided by applicable law; and 

WHEREAS, the powers of the consolidated board are those specific in Chapter 18B of the North Carolina 
General Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville is a member of the Triad Municipal Alcoholic Beverage Control System. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL appoints Ed Smith to serve 
on the Triad Municipal Alcoholic Beverage Control System Board for a term of three (3) years beginning 
July 1, 2024 and concluding June 30, 2027. 

Ed Smith 134 Oak Leaf Lane, Lewisville, NC 27023  

Appointed this the 13th day of June 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

_______________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #23



ORDINANCE 2024-021 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
ACCEPTING PUBLIC STREET MAINTENANCE AND PUBLIC DEDICATION OF 

A PORTION OF PLEMMONS ROAD 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate for the Town of Lewisville to maintain public streets; and 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) has inquired if the Town 
would accept maintenance of 265 linear feet +/- of Plemmons Road (SR 1304) located outside 
the Lewisville Town limits (as indicated on attached map); and, 

WHEREAS, Plemmons Road is a gravel road; and, 

WHEREAS, there are no existing major or significant maintenance or construction deficiencies 
related to the continued safe public use of this portion of Plemmons Road; and, 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council has considered public interest in the Town’s acceptance 
of this street into the Town’s municipal street maintenance program. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED THAT the Lewisville Town Council requests removal of 265 
linear feet +/- of Plemmons Road (SR 1304) located outside the Lewisville Town limits from the 
NCDOT State Highway System; and,  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that the 265 linear feet +/- of 
Plemmons Road (SR 1304) located outside the Lewisville Town limits be added to the Town of 
Lewisville’s Powell Bill system; and,  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be made a part of the Town of Lewisville Town Code; the sections of this ordinance may be 
re-numbered or re-lettered; and, the word ‘ordinance’ may be changed to ‘section’, ‘article’, 
‘chapter’ or other appropriate designation to accomplish such intention as needed. 

Adopted this the 13th day of June 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #24


	06-13-2024 Agenda
	01 - 2024-025 - Res - April 30, 2024 financials
	02 - 04-18-2024 Budget Workshop Minutes
	03 - 04-29-2024 Budget Workshop Minutes
	04 - 05-02-2024 TC Briefing Minutes
	05 - 05-09-2024 TC Meeting Minutes
	06 - 05-13-2024 Budget Workshop Minutes
	07 - 2024 Meeting Schedule Master Admin - Dec 2023
	08 - 2024-012 - Ord -  Rezoning - 2065 Glenn Ferry Court
	09 - 2024-013 - Ord -  Annexation - 2065 Glenn Ferry Court
	10 - Ord - 2024-001 - 2024-25 Budget Ordinance
	2024-2025 Budget Message-Final
	2024-2025 Budget Ordinance

	Staff Report-FY 2024-2025 Capital Reserves-No Contribution
	11 - 2024-014 - Ord - Amend Sidewalk, bike, greenway capital reserve fund
	12 - 2024-015 - Ord - Municipal Buildings & Land capital reserve fund
	13 - 2024-016 - Ord - Public Works Facility capital reserve
	14 - 2024-017 - Ord - Parks & Rec Capital Reserve
	15 - 2024-018 - Ord - Collect 2024 taxes
	16 - 2024-019 - Ord - Collect 2023 and prior year taxes
	17 - 2024-026 - Janitorial - Executive Cleaning
	18 - 2024-027 Res - Janitorial - Executive Cleaning - Town Hall
	19 - 2024-028 - Horticultural - Hauser
	20 - 2024-029 - Grounds Maintenance - Lawn Masters
	21 - 2024-030 - Snow and ice removal
	Staff Report-Amend ARPA Grant Project Ord 6-13-2024
	22 - 2024-020 - Ord -  ARPA Grant Project Ordinance
	23 - 2024-003 - ABC Board Appointment
	24 - 2024-021 - Ord - Street Acceptance - Plemmons Rd (outside town limits)



